[image: image1.jpg]Oin (10/6mm). Over a year later, on 6 September 1873 the line was extended into Birmingham,
over tracks built for the Birmingham Public Works Committee, to Monmouth Street, later renamed
Colmore Row. Through services ran from there every 7-2 minutes to Villa Road, every 15 minutes
to “New Inns”, and every half-hour to Hill Top, with a connecting car from Carters Green to
Dudley Port. The main depot was in Tildasley Street north of Carters Green, West Bromwich.
Stables were also provided next-door to the “Red Lion™ in Soho Road and beside the “New Inns’
on Holyhead Road. The first 12 cars delivered in 1872 were 12ft 9in long, excluding the end plat-
forms, six feet wide, and seated 18 people inside and 18 on the open top deck. A further ten cars
were obtained the following year for the Birmingham extension.

Photo: Birmingham & District Tramways Co horse tram No 17
“Birmingham and Villa Cross”

Unfortunately the tramway did not pay its way, and the service from Carters Green to Dudley
Port ceased in December 1873. The rails were recovered and re-used by the Handsworth
Highways Board on a new tramway along Villa Road, from the existing route on Soho Hill to a
point past the “Villa Cross™ pub in Lozells Road, where a depot was built, and the route opencd
in November 1874, The company founder, Mr W Busby, resigned from the board in 1874, regret-
ting that “his advice and experience as the only practical man on the board, was set aside and
ignored”. Under a new board the company sold off older 30 buses and 100 horses, but the trams
continued to lose money, and the service to Hill Top was cut back further to Carters Green in
September 1875.

The Kellys Directory for 1875 lists horse-bus routes operated by Birmingham & District
Tramways Co:

Nechells Green, “New Inn” (2 per hour - worked by agreement by Henry Chapman),
Hagley Road / Manor Road (2 per hour), Wheeler Street, “Stork Inn” (hourly),

Villa Cross (6 per hour - worked by agreement by William Mayner),

Kings Heath (“frequently during the day"
Kirby’s Pool, (Bournbrook - 10 times daily),
Moseley, “Bulls Head” (4 per hour),

Pebble Mill Lane (2 per hour),

Saltley (hourly),

Small Heath (2 per hour).

In addition William Mayner ran horse buses on his own account to Trinity Church, Birchficlds
via Heathfield Road, 4 per hour, with four journeys daily extended to Perry Barr.

Map 2: Horse bus and tram routes, 1875 (based on Jenson)

In December 1873 Birmingham Corporation resolved to build new tramways to Bournbrook,
Moseley and Aston, but the company soon withdrew from any commitment to operate horse trams
to Moseley, Small Heath and Aston, but agreed to operate a service to Bournbrook. This line was
built during 1875, although the company was getting into serious financial difficultics. A new
company, the Birmingham Tramways and Omnibus Co Ltd, was formed on 26 May 1876 to take
over the old company’s assets for £22 510 - they had originally cost at least £115 000. It also
bought out the established business of William Mayner, who had been operating horse buses in the
Lozells and Handsworth area for 20 years, and who became manager for  the new company.

On taking over operation on 3 June 1876, the company immediately replaced the tram service
between “New Inns*, Handsworth and Carters Green by buses. On 17 June 1876 a new tram serv-
ice (no doubt using the same vehicles) opened along the Bristol Road as far as the “Malt Shovel
Bournbrook, (later rebuilt as the “Bournbrook Hotel”), at first connecting with the Handsworth
line in Monmouth Street (Colmore Row) via Victoria Square and Paradise Street. The hill in
Suffolk Street proved difficult forhorses: and services wiere s cit back to the Tost of the hill





